Meeting of the Board of Zoning Adjustment

August 6, 2013 Custer County Courthouse Westcliffe, Colorado

Present:

Board of Zoning Adjustment: Ken Patterson, Ken Lankford, Jean Canterbury

Absent: Lockett Pitman & Dorothy Nepa

Associate Member: Dale Mullen & Brad Stam
Staff: Jackie Hobby, Chuck Ippolito

The meeting was called to order at 1:00 P.M. by KEN PATTERSON, Board of Zoning Adjustment Chairman.

Pledge of allegiance recited;

PATTERSON: Asked the Associate Members DALE MULLEN and BRAD STAM to replace

LOCKETT PITMAN and DOROTHY NEPA and move to a seated position.

PATTERSON: We need to approve or amend the minutes from February 5, 2013. Is there any

additions or corrections?

No comment

PATTERSON: The minutes are approved.

PATTERSON: JACKIE will give us a zoning report.

HOBBY: In the month of July we had nine septic inspections, seven special conferences and thirteen compliance inspections. Permits issued during this month are ten septic permits compared to eleven last year and sixteen zoning permits compared to twenty six last year. Permits issued year to date for 2013 are thirty four septic and one hundred and ten zoning permits compared to 2012 are forty two septic permits and one hundred and fifteen zoning permits.

PATTERSON: The agenda item is a request by the Wild West Cowboy Church of Westcliffe for an oversized sign. The schedule number is 100-40-350 at 60260 Hwy 69. The applicant's statement reads: "We want to communicate upcoming special events and weekly sermon topics to the community. We are requesting illumination due to the early onset of darkness in the winter months. Pole mounting is indicated to resist damage from high winds. Emergency notification for the county ex: fire and road closure." Is the applicant present?

LARRY SMITH and DEE WILHITE are representing the application.

PATTERSON: Were the adjoining land owners notified?

HOBBY: Yes, nine adjoining land owners were notified and we received four comments. The first comment was from RICHARD DANIELS: "In regards to Cowboy church's request I have no objection to their request. They always do everything in a safe & responsible manner" The next comment was from DAVE NEQUETTE:" I have received notification regarding a request for a sign variance from the Wild West Cowboy Church. I want to convey my support for this sign variance. I do not see any problem with this and I think it is insane to need a variance for a sign." The next comment was from KIRK SAMUELSON: "Ok with me" So we have three in favor and we got one against from ANGUS THOMSON: Page 15 in the July 25th Tribune announces a hearing, at 1 pm on 6th August in the County Courthouse, to review and discuss a sign variance proposal to erect a lighted notice board on the property of the Cowboy Church on Highway 69. Hardly an item of concern unless you were privileged, as I was, to be an active part in a week long discussion and review in 1999, to define where Custer County should be heading in the future years. To ensure that it had professional guidance, to avoid the mistakes made by other Counties and States, the non-profit Sonoran Institute of Tucson were used in an advisory capacity. Almost everyone in Custer County appeared to get actively involved. A major area of concern, among many, was allowing the growth of lights and signs in an otherwise attractive town and countryside, and photos were shown of the trashing and blight which results. Surely the use of the Tribune to advertise the activities of the Cowboy Church would be much less harmful to the beauty of Custer County." Also we received an email from the Cowboy Church after they met with Dark Skies representative JIM BRADBURN the applicant will be discussing that in their presentation.

PATTERSON: Is there anything that you would like to add or further explain? SMITH: My name is LARRY SMITH and I am the minister of the Cowboy Church and this is DEE WILHITE she is the secretary for the church. Before we made the decision to ask for permission to put a sign up, we made contact with CHRISTE FELDMANN, who is in charge of Custer County Emergency Management. We wanted to make sure if we did something that we would be also able to enhance Custer County, plus put out information about the current events that we do. CHRISTE FELDMANN and I had a personal conversation she said that having a sign would be an asset to Emergency Management. An example would be if there was a road closure on Copper Gulch because it is not a State Highway they would not put the signs out. It would be the responsibility of the county and we might be able to fill in the gap. That was the purpose for the request of the sign being illuminated. We really don't need an illuminated sign. MR. WILHITE made contact with MR. BRADBURN who is with Dark Skies and we were telling him we would do everything possible to eliminate the light from shining in the sky. Maybe a small roof over the sign so that the light will not illuminate upward. The purpose of the lighting was in the event that the county had an emergency and that sign would need to be illuminated during the dark hours. Our events we do not need illumination. We wanted to do something with the county, we spoke with CHRISTE FELDMAN and she has a contract with the school and if we received approval with the county for the sign she would sign a contract with us. In addition to the light we also said that we would put a timer on the illumination and cut it off at 7:30 P.M. in the evenings unless it was a county emergency. We are also designated as the county emergency shelter for animals during fires, also the counties camp site for the fire fighters and personnel. We went around to other business within the city there are four businesses that have the exact same sign the Baptist Church, Hunger Buster, Schlabach Deli and R's restaurant, we also know that we are not in the city. The purpose of the four foot by eight foot sign is that's the size that this particular company makes, and the reason for the four foot by eight foot sign is that it has six inch letters, it will need to be read from the road. The proposed site on the road is over one hundred feet away from the

pavement of the highway. There are only three lines to place the letters and you can get about ten to twelve words on it. The purpose of the illumination of the sign came from our conversation with CHRISTE FELDMAN in the event there was an emergency situation people would need to see the sign at night. We are trying to be friendly with the counties needs and Dark Skies.

PATTERSON: Any questions from the Board?

LANKFORD: You will shut the light out at 7:30 P.M. there will be a timer?

SMITH: We will put a timer on the electric; we do not need it illuminated. We were doing this strictly for CHRISTE FELDMAN because she said in an emergency situation they would need it to be illuminated. In order to have illumination on our sign we will need permission from the county also. In regard to MR. ANGUS THOMPSON response not everyone buys a newspaper to get information, so that was one of the reasons we spoke with Office of Emergency Management. The county information would take preference over our information that would be on the sign.

MULLEN: For clarification you said that it is the size of a four foot by eight foot piece of plywood. In our documentation the size is three and half feet by eight feet?

SMITH: That was a reference for demonstration purposes only, its forty inches.

STAM: I know it can be effective to control the light with a shield. Will the shield that you are purposing be that effective?

SMITH: I was not in the conversation with MR. BRADBURN and MIKE WILHITTE one of the associates in our church it was suggested that was something that he would like. A two foot roof would reflect the light from going up in the sky. The only purpose of lighting is only necessary for emergency situations; it would only be an asset to the county.

MULLEN: My understanding is that the Cowboy Church point of view is that you would prefer not to light the sign? You are only requesting to have the sign lit because Custer County is requesting that you light the sign?

SMITH: No, Custer County is not requesting that we light the sign only if there were an emergency. Having a sign that was lit would be able to provide the necessary information at night of a road closure, fire etc.

MULLEN: What is your preference non- light? Or lighted?

SMITH: I do not have a preference; if we are going to just advertise our events a non-lighted sign would be perfect. The county is not requesting we do this it was a suggestion from the Office of Emergency Management. We were just trying to be friendly with the county.

MULLEN: My question is, if this was approved not to be lit you are ok with that? SMITH: Yes, we sure are.

PATTERSON: I understand it would be cheaper to get the pre made sign from Sam's Club, could you not get a twenty square foot sign to serve the same purpose?

SMITH: If it is going to be used to broadcast information about emergency you would want to make sure that passing motorist driving by at sixty five miles an hour would not have to slow down in order to read it.

PATTERSON: I did not know if you had explored for that possibility.

MULLEN: A follow up question for JACKIE, the purpose of this meeting is a variance for a twenty eight square foot sign? It's the eight feet that is oversized because you are allowed a twenty square foot sign?

HOBBY: Yes

PATTERSON: If the applicants would take a seat we will take comments from the audience and then you will be able to address the comments at the end.

HAL JULSEN: Custer County resident and I drive by it on the way to my ranch and I can see this property from my front door. One thing I did not understand is how far from the road is this going to be?

SMITH: From the actual pavement of the road approximately one hundred feet.

JULSEN: Do you manually go slide the letters in?

SMITH: Yes

JULSEN: At that point could you turn the light on? The light personally affects me.

SMITH: We do not have to have a light.

JULSEN: How do you change the letters on the sign?

SMITH: You slide them in and out.

JULSEN: So you could turn the light on when you did that?

SMITH: Yes, we could do that. I understand the situation and we want to be sensitive to that. If you approve this we could have a clause that only under emergency situations the sign would be lit. If for emergency situation the light would probably need to stay on all night.

JULSEN: That is better than on all night.

SMITH: If we were approved an illuminated sign we would put a timer on it.

JULSEN: No one has a light on in Range View Sites, I am against the light.

BONNIE JULSEN: Custer County, We have property in two locations and my main concern.

The sign can go up the church is considered a business and is allowed a sign am I correct.

HOBBY: Yes, you are allowed a sign but it cannot be any larger than twenty square feet. It does not matter if you are residential or a business you are allowed this size of sign.

JULSEN: I believe that a church is a business. A lot of talk around here is oh good we are going to have a county sign. I wonder if someone has tested the legally and if a sign was put up and there was incorrect information and it caused physical harm. That could be a big responsibility to the church and possibly the county. I know CHRISTE from cattle women but I do not know if she has the legal ability to place county information on it.

HOBBY: We do not have a residential and business area and the Cowboy Church has an approved Special Use Permit for that property. Now they would like to have a sign that is larger than the Custer County Zoning Regulations will allow so they needed to apply for a Zoning Variance that relieves them from the Zoning Regulations.

JULSEN: I have a problem with the sign and also with it being lighted. It is the beginning of an agricultural area.

PATTERSON: Would the applicants like to answer these concerns or wait until the end of the audience comments?

WILHITTE: As far as the legality CHRISTE is using the school, should she put Uranus information on the school it would be the same situation.

JULSEN: No it would not.

WILHITTE: Sure it would, this sign would be per her instructions, per the particular emergency. The school would have the same information. As far as the lighting goes we would only light the sign for an emergency.

JULSEN: The school is a county entity, the church is not. I am sure that the school has its own attorney in dealing with the legal matters.

JIM BRADBURN: I am representing two people. I live across the county line on Copper Gulch road and I am also representing Dark Skies. I have had a discussion with the Cowboy Church and I do appreciate the fact that the church contacted us. I had some concerns about the size and the fact it was illuminated, the glare on the highway. It would be lit from 4:30 P.M. to 7:30 P.M. only in the winter months was my understanding. I told him that I was a architect and that the sign needed a little dressing up, these comments are from the being the president of Dark

Skies. Our board believes that this valley should remain as dark as possible and only be lit by natural lighting like the Milky Way. It's opposed to a light that's lit at any time. If the church is not willing to light that sign we would be much happier. I would like to offer language for your Zoning Regulations to address lighting in your signs. I have spoken with VIC BARNES and I will be sending something in. That is our position, we do not believe that the sign is necessary and I believe that using it as an emergency notification is a bit weak personally.

ANGUS THOMPSON: What the county needs if it's going to inform the county of an emergency is not an organization with a sign. I am fifteen miles south how will this sign help me? How many people in this room attended the five days of meetings in 1999 where the people of Westcliffe decided what they wanted? They decided they did not want anything to do with large signs or lighted signs. Thank you.

PATTERSON: Any other comments or questions?

No reply

MULLEN: This is a question for JACKIE, looking at 6.5 in the Zoning Regulations. They are entitled to a sign of twenty square feet when they applied for a Special Use Permit. Could Samuelson on the other side put up a twenty square foot sign?

HOBBY: When the Cowboy Church approved the Special Use Permit they did not include a sign at that time. Everyone is allowed twenty square foot sign.

LANKFORD: I would like to approve their sign size wise, the lighting of the sign is what I don't want. If we have the ability that emergency services could activate the illumination of the sign I might consider that.

HOBBY: I don't believe that this is a good idea. Who will be responsible for making sure that this condition is followed?

WILHITTE: We will enforce this we do not have a problem with that.

STAM: May I make a motion, I do not hear anyone in the room advocating for illumination. The county, if they have an interest in the subject, they have not come forward. I make a motion that we approve the variance as far as the sign size without illumination.

MULLEN: I second the motion.

PATTERSON: All in favor

Three were in favor, two opposed

HOBBY: This motion automatically is denied we need four in favor to be approved.

PATTERSON: Yes, JEAN do you have a comment?

CANTERBURY: I am not sure what the motion was. I was voting for the original request of a large sign with illumination.

PATTERSON: So you voted against it?

CANTERBURY: I voted against not having illumination.

STAM: She voted correctly.

CANTERBURY: I want the sign and the illumination.

HOBBY: The motion is three in favor of the sign size and no illumination, one against the motion they want the sign size and illumination and one against sign size and illumination.

PATTERSON: Let's start over with one singular motion.

STAM: I will restate my motion; I move that to deny the application for illumination.

BUTLER: Mr. Chairman, point of order. May I hear the original motion?

HOBBY: The original motion was from Mr. Stam and it was to approve the forty x eight feet sign as stated in the application without illumination.

BUTLER: Period that was the end of the motion. Now you have voted on it now you want to change your mind? You are out of order sir.

HOBBY: We had three in favor and two opposed.

STAM: The Zoning Resolution says that if you have a five member board any motion that does not have four in favor is denied. The simple majority is four. What has happened is that we have three in favor and two against. Unfortunately what has happened for the applicant is that you have nothing.

MULLEN: We are at ground zero here, we have a clean slate right now and we are awaiting a new motion.

CANTERBURY: I make a motion that we accept the sign as submitted without the illumination.

LANKFORD: I second the motion.

PATTERSON: All in favor? Four in favor and one opposed

REASONS:

STAM: Yes, I did not hear any serious arguments against the size of the sign. Most of the concern was the lighting of the sign.

MULLEN: Yes, I voted in favor of the motion I felt one hundred feet off the road and the six and one half variance was a non-issue. Since the applicant did not care about lighting there was no one here today to request lighting it was a non-issue.

CANTERBURY: Yes, I voted because most of the adjoining property owners had no problem with it. I particularly liked DAVE NEQUETTE comment, I would also like to say that there is a big sign on the road that is painted on a yellow backboard that says that this is not the dam lake road and it's been there for how many years? Nobody cares about that, but if somebody wants to put up a sign for a business or a church we are offended.

LANKFORD: Yes, I voted in favor of it because they are already entitled to a twenty square foot sign, we are not talking about that much bigger and since it will not be illuminated.

PATTERSON: No, I was going back to the old adage if you are not going to stand by the rules why make them. All the signs of the same size are in the city limits with a twenty five mile an hour speed limit, they are also closer to the road. I don't feel like if you are doing sixty five miles an hour you are going to be able to read the sign.

Hobby: Thank you, The Cowboy church sign is approved without illumination.

STAM: I would like to say one more thing, I appreciate that the church also was trying to think of the community with their sign also.

MULLEN: Made a motion to adjourn PATTERSON: Seconded the motion Meeting adjourned at 1:57 P.M.